
 

 

 

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 

will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given 

below. 

Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 

Members: 

 
City Personnel: 

 

 
Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton 
Monday, April 1, 2019 @ 6:00 pm 
Ed Malinowski Boardroom – Stoughton Utilities (600 S 4th St, Stoughton WI 53589)  
Lisa Reeves (Chair), Matt Bartlett (Vice-Chair), Sid Boersma, Thomas Majewski and Mayor 
Timothy Swadley (ex-officio member) 

Director Gillingham 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 Call to Order 

 

2 Approval of the Thursday, March 14, 2019 Personnel Committee meeting minutes 

 

3 Communications/Updates 

 

4 Discussion and possible action regarding Workers Comp Benefit – Elimination Period 

 

5 Discussion and possible action regarding Non-DOT and DOT Drug & Alcohol Policy 

 

6 Review list of identified safety sensitive positions 

 

7 Discussion and possible action regarding three Public Works position descriptions 

 

8 Discussion and possible action regarding eleven Parks & Recreation position 

descriptions 

 

9 Discussion and possible action regarding updates to two Senior Center position 

descriptions 

 

10 Discussion and possible action regarding updates to Library Substitute position 

description 

 

11 Future Agenda Items 

 

 Accrued Sick Leave/Retirement 

 Work rules update and on-call status 

 Email/Electronic vs paper paystubs 

 Timesheet Entry 

 

12 Adjournment 

 

 

** May move to closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, compensation, or 
performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises 
responsibility. 
 

If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting.  
 

NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL. 
NOTE:  For security reasons, the front door of the City Hall Building will be locked after 4:30 p.m.  If you need to enter 
City Hall after that time, please use the Fifth Street entrances. 





 


 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given 


below. 


Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 


Members: 


 
City Personnel: 


 


 
Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton 
Monday, April 1, 2019 @ 6:00 pm 
Ed Malinowski Boardroom – Stoughton Utilities (600 S 4th St, Stoughton WI 53589)  
Lisa Reeves (Chair), Matt Bartlett (Vice-Chair), Sid Boersma, Thomas Majewski and Mayor 
Timothy Swadley (ex-officio member) 


Director Gillingham 


 


 


 


 


 


 


1 Call to Order 


 


2 Approval of the Thursday, March 14, 2019 Personnel Committee meeting minutes 


 


3 Communications/Updates 


 


4 Discussion and possible action regarding Workers Comp Benefit – Elimination Period 


 


5 Discussion and possible action regarding Non-DOT and DOT Drug & Alcohol Policy 


 


6 Review list of identified safety sensitive positions 


 


7 Discussion and possible action regarding three Public Works position descriptions 


 


8 Discussion and possible action regarding eleven Parks & Recreation position 


descriptions 


 


9 Discussion and possible action regarding updates to two Senior Center position 


descriptions 


 


10 Discussion and possible action regarding updates to Library Substitute position 


description 


 


11 Future Agenda Items 


 


 Accrued Sick Leave/Retirement 


 Work rules update and on-call status 


 Email/Electronic vs paper paystubs 


 Timesheet Entry 


 


12 Adjournment 


 


 


** May move to closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, compensation, or 
performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises 
responsibility. 
 


If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting.  
 


NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL. 
NOTE:  For security reasons, the front door of the City Hall Building will be locked after 4:30 p.m.  If you need to enter 
City Hall after that time, please use the Fifth Street entrances. 








PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, March 14, 2019 @ 6:00 pm 
Ed Malinowski Boardroom – Stoughton 
 


Present: Lisa Reeves (Chair), Matt Bartlett (Vice-Chair), Thomas Majewski, Sid Boersma, Mayor Swadley, and Director 
Gillingham  
Also in Attendance:  
 


1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 6:02pm. 
 


2. Approval of the Minutes of the Monday, January 7, 2019 Personnel Committee meeting 


Motion to approve Boersma, second Bartlett, Approved 5-0 
 


3. Communications 
Director Gillingham reported that she has been focused on personnel matters at the utilities as we have been 
without a Director for a period of time.   
Director Gillingham also reported that a grievance has been filed and is researching the validity as the person is 
a paid volunteer,   
Update on Senior Center, loss of Bryant foundation funding to take Volunteer Program Coordinator from 
19hr/week to 32hr/week.  Cindy has been able to find funds for the remainder of 2019 to keep the position at 
32 hours.   
Utilities Director hired and doing well 
Library Director offer extended and working on clearing the last contingency-background 
Senior Center Volunteer Coordinator- offer extended 
Volunteer Fire Fighter-interviews March 21st 
1095 ACA Compliance completed  
Work Rules re-write update on status 
 


4. Discussion and possible action regarding Non-Leadership Hiring Policy updates 
Motion Boersma to approve with adding verbiage for civilian police, second Bartlett, Approved 5-0 
 


5. Discussion regarding Work Rules and Union Contract comparison in regards to sick time 


It was explained by Director Gillingham the differences between Union including Chief, Lieutenants and 
Sergeants, and all other staff.  There was a document in the packet that shows the differences and the concerns.  
A 50% annual contribution at the current rate to the HSA was discussed as well as a cap.   
Motion by Boersma to have Director Gillingham work with Finance and determine the current liability and 
fiscal impact and then to provide options, second Reeves, Approved 5-0 
 


6. Discussion and possible action regarding Random Drug Testing 
Director Gillingham wanted to make sure that no changes were needed for this policy.  She explained the 


questions about CBD and the response from the Stoughton Hospital. Stoughton Hospital stated that if an 


employee is using BCD, there is a chance that the employee could test positive for CBD.  They recommend that if 


using CBD purchase from a trusted source and get a drug test.  The city’s policy has a zero tolerance for drugs 


and alcohol.  Motion to leave policy as is, 2nd Sid, all in favor 


Motion by Bartlett to leave policy as is, second Boersma, Approved 5-0 
 


7. Future Agenda Items 
Reeves asked that Unplanned Absence be added to discuss at the next meeting. 
 


 Work rules update and on-call status 


 Email/Electronic vs paper paystubs 


 Timesheet Entry 
 


Motion to adjourn Reeves, second Majewski, Approved 5-0. Meeting adjourned 7:12pm. 


 








Council Approved INSERT DATE 
 


 


                    SENIOR  CENTER 


                Receptionist/Office Assistant 
 


 


 


City of Stoughton 


PAY GRADE: 2                                                                                           FLSA: N 


 REPORTS TO: Director 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION: 


The purpose of this position is to act as Receptionist for the Stoughton Area Senior Center.  
 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 
position, but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 


may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 
 


 Greets, screens, assists and directs callers and visitors; provides information 


regarding the Senior Center and its programs and activities; takes and relays 


messages; answers questions and refers individuals to appropriate personnel. 


 


 Takes reservations; receives and receipts payments; counts coffee money; records 


craft sales. 


 


 Signs library books in and out. 


 


 Newsletter Editor. 


 


 Monthly meal billing. 


 


 Loan Closet recordings. 


 


 Assigns Case Managers to clients. 


 


 Maintains a variety of records; performs data entry.  


 


 Maintains database. 


 


 Schedules riders for shopping and/or meal site. 


 
 
 







Council Approved INSERT DATE 
 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential 
part of the purpose of this position and may also be performed by other unit members. 


 
 


 Sorts and distributes mail; displays magazines and newspaper; helps with large 
mailings. 
 


 Sells crafts and posts sales in ledger. 
 


 Opens/closes Center; unlocks/unlocks doors; turns on/off lights; waters flowers; etc. 
 


 Performs other related functions as assigned or required. 


 


QUALIFICATIONS: 


The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


 
 High School Diploma or equivalent with 2 years of clerical and customer 


service experience or any combination of education and experience that 
provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.  


 


 
Language Skills and Interpersonal Communication 


 
 Requires the ability to process, calculate, compute, summate, and/or tabulate data 


and/or information. Also requires the ability to perform subsequent action in 


relation to these computational operations. 
 


 Requires the ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-
established policies, procedures and standards. 


 
 Requires the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests 


from others. 


 
 Requires the ability to use a wide variety of reference data and information such as 


reservations, time sheets, craft sales, payments, schedules, and records.  
 


 Requires the ability to communicate effectively with the Senior Center Director and 


all Center personnel, senior citizens, outreach workers, Nutrition Supervisor, van 
driver, supervisors, Adult Day Care clients, visitors and the public. 


 
 
Mathematical Skills 


 
 Ability to perform addition and subtraction, multiplication and division.  


 
 







Council Approved INSERT DATE 
 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
 


 Requires the ability to carry out instructions furnished in written, oral or diagram 
form. Involves semi routine work, with some latitude for independent judgement 
regarding choices of action.  


 
 Requires the ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 


situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable or verifiable 
criteria. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Position  Functions 
 


 Requires the ability to operate, maneuver, and/or provide simple but continuous 
adjustment on equipment, machinery, and tools such as a computer and other office 
machines, and/or materials used in performing. 


 
 Requires the ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 


movements such as rapid keyboard use. 
  Requires the ability to exert light physical effort in sedentary to light work, but which 


may involve some lifting, carrying, pushing, and pulling of objects weighing five to 


ten pounds. 
 


  Requires the ability to recognize and identify similarities or differences between 
characteristics of colors, shapes and sounds associated with job-related objects, 
materials and tasks. 


 
Environmental Adaptability 


 
   Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to 


environmental factors is minimal and poses very limited risk of injury. 


 
 


 
 


 


 


 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 


state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 
individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 
discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 








Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


      LIBRARY SUBSTITUTE 


    City of Stoughton 


SALARY RANGE:  $12.4800                          PAY GRADE: Not Graded                                                                                                  
FLSA: N 


REPORTS TO: Library 


 
SUMMARY OF POSITION: 


To provide public service at the Adult, Children’s, and/or Circulation desks on an as needed 
basis, often with short notice. 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 


position, but do not compriose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 
may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 


 Provide assistance to library users at the Adult, Children’s and/or Circulation service 
desks, working with people of all ages. Open or close Library according to shift 
worked. 


 Work Adult and Children’s service desks as assigned. Provide reference service and 
other helpful information to Library users. Place holds and request materials for 
library users. Issue and renew library cards. Maintain neat work area and equipment. 


 Work Circulation desk as assigned. Process holds and delivery returns. Check 
materials in and out. Collect overdue fines and other payments. Clear book drop and 
book return bin. Answer phones, provide information, and directing calls as 
appropriate. Maintain neat orderly work area and equipment.  Open or close Library 
according to shift worked. Direct the work of shelvers. 


 Assist and train library users in the use of library technology such as self-checkouts, 
computer reservations, Internet. 


 Other duties as assigned. 


 


QUALIFICATIONS: 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 


 
Education/Training/Certifications  


 
 High school graduate; college degree preferred.[GS1] 


 
 One year library experience with a background in adult, youth, or circulation services 


in any combination. 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 
 Knowledge and understanding of the principles of confidentiality of library records. 


 
 Computer skills including database searching and familiarity with Microsoft Office 


programs. 
 


 Cash handling experience. 
 


 Experience with e-readers, and computer troubleshooting desired. 
 


Language Skills and Interpersonal Communication 


 
 Ability to speak comfortably to members of the public. 


 
 Ability to comprehend and interpret a variety of documents including technical 


manuals, library databases, reference materials, and the library’s integrated library 
system (Koha). 
 


 Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, and follow  
instructions. 
 


 Ability to use and interpret library science and automation terminology. 
 


 Ability to communicate effectively with library users, volunteers, Library & City staff,  
representatives of other libraries, groups of people, and the general public verbally 
and in writing. 
 


 Ability to work with others in a team-oriented environment. 


 
Mathematical Skills 


 
 Ability to add, subtract, multiply, divide, calculate decimals and percents, and 


make use of the principles of basic algebra, geometry, and descriptive statistics. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 
 Ability to interpret instructions furnished in written, oral, diagrammatic, or schedule 


form. 
 


 Ability to exercise independent judgment to adopt or modify methods and standards 
to meet variations in assigned objectives. 


 


Physical Requirements 
 


 Ability to operate and troubleshoot a variety of office and library equipment including  
personal computers, photocopier, telephone, a variety of printers and other office 
machines, microfilm reader, and the Library’s integrated library system (Koha). 
 


 Ability and transportation to work flexible hours and schedule with short notice. 
 


 Ability to lift and place boxes and other objects weighing up to 40 pounds onto carts. 
 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 Ability to stoop, kneel, crouch, climb, and balance in order to provide program 
activities and other essential functions. 
 


 Ability to stand or to sit for extended periods of time up to four hours. 
[GS2] 


Supervisory Skills 


 Ability to supervise the operations of any of the public service desks.[GS3] 


 


Environmental Adaptability 


 Ability to work effectively in a typical library environment. 
 


 Ability to work flexible hours, including day, evening and weekend hours. 


 
 


 


 


This position has a 6-month probationary period. 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 


state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 
individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 
discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 


 








Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


      LIBRARY SUBSTITUTE 


    City of Stoughton 


PAY GRADE: Not Graded                                                                             FLSA: N 


REPORTS TO: Library 
 


SUMMARY OF POSITION: 


To provide public service at the Adult, Children’s, and/or Circulation desks on an as needed 
basis, often with short notice. 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 


position, but do not comprise an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 
may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 


 Provide assistance to library users at the Adult, Children’s and/or Circulation service 
desks, working with people of all ages. Open or close Library according to shift 
worked. 


 Work Adult and Children’s service desks as assigned. Provide reference service and 
other helpful information to Library users. Place holds and request materials for 
library users. Issue and renew library cards. Maintain neat work area and equipment. 


 Work Circulation desk as assigned. Process holds and delivery returns. Check 
materials in and out. Collect overdue fines and other payments. Clear book drop and 
book return bin. Answer phones, provide information, and direct calls as appropriate. 
Maintain orderly work area and equipment. Direct the work of shelvers. 


 Assist and train library users in the use of library technology such as self-checkouts, 
computer reservations, Internet. 


 Other duties as assigned. 


 


QUALIFICATIONS: 
The ability to perform the Core Duties listed above and: 
 


Education/Training/Certifications  
 


 High school graduate; college degree preferred. 
 


 One year library experience with a background in adult, youth, or circulation services 
in any combination. 


 
 Knowledge and understanding of the principles of confidentiality of library records. 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 
 Computer skills including database searching and familiarity with Microsoft Office 


programs. 
 


 Cash handling experience. 
 


 Experience with e-readers, and computer troubleshooting desired. 
 


Language Skills and Interpersonal Communication 


 
 Ability to speak comfortably to members of the public. 


 
 Ability to comprehend and interpret a variety of documents including technical 


manuals, library databases, reference materials, and the library’s integrated library 
system (Koha). 
 


 Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, and follow  
instructions. 
 


 Ability to use and interpret library science and automation terminology. 
 


 Ability to communicate effectively with library users, volunteers, Library & City staff,  
representatives of other libraries, groups of people, and the general public verbally 
and in writing. 
 


 Ability to work with others in a team-oriented environment. 


 
Mathematical Skills 


 
 Ability to add, subtract, multiply, divide, calculate decimals and percents, and 


make use of the principles of basic algebra, geometry, and descriptive statistics. 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
 


 Ability to interpret instructions furnished in written, oral, diagrammatic, or schedule 
form. 
 


 Ability to exercise independent judgment to adopt or modify methods and standards 
to meet variations in assigned objectives. 


 


Physical Requirements 
 


 Ability to operate and troubleshoot a variety of office and library equipment including  
personal computers, photocopier, telephone, a variety of printers and other office 
machines, microfilm reader, and the Library’s integrated library system (Koha). 
 


 Ability and transportation to work flexible hours and schedule with short notice. 
 


 Ability to lift and place boxes and other objects weighing up to 40 pounds onto carts. 
 


 Ability to stoop, kneel, crouch, climb, and balance in order to provide program 
activities and other essential functions. 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 
 Ability to stand or to sit for extended periods of time up to four hours. 


 


 


Environmental Adaptability 


 Ability to work effectively in a typical library environment. 
 


 Ability to work flexible hours, including day, evening and weekend hours. 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 
state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 


individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 
discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 


 








Alcohol & Substance Abuse 
 
The City is committed to maintaining a workplace free from substance abuse. Substance 
abuse, either at work or away from work, can seriously endanger the safety of employees 
and citizens alike. Likewise, substance or alcohol abuse has been demonstrated to cause 
absenteeism, poor job performance, and the inability to perform work safely. 
 
Additionally, if an employee is taking a prescribed controlled substance which may 
adversely affect or limit the employee’s ability to perform their duties, the employee must 
notify their Supervisor and/or Department Director of such known side effects prior to the 
performance of any such duties. 
 
Department Directors are responsible for communicating to every employee that the 
City’s position applies to all alcohol or controlled substances. As a condition of 
employment, all City employees must abide by the policy. 
 
The use, possession, sale, manufacture or transfer of controlled substances is prohibited 
at all times with an exemption for Police Personnel acting in their official capacity for 
possession only in handling of police cases. 
 
The consumption of alcoholic beverages or controlled substances during the work day or 
while on standby is prohibited, as is reporting for work or being at work, while under the 
influence of alcohol or a controlled substance. Possession of alcoholic beverages while 
on City premises and/or in any City work environment is prohibited, except for Police 
acting in official capacity. Disciplinary action will be taken in cases where violations occur. 
 
All employees should report evidence of alcohol or controlled substance abuse to a 
supervisor or Department Director immediately. In cases where the use of alcohol or 
controlled substances pose an imminent threat to the safety of persons or property, an 
employee must report the violation. Failure to do so could result in disciplinary action for 
the non-reporting employee. 
 
Department Directors have the authority to require “reasonable suspicion” drug and 
alcohol testing and to send employees home, on sick leave, for the remaining work hours 
who have apparently consumed controlled substances or manifest behavior during the 
work day that appears to impair the performance of their job. Investigatory conference(s) 
will be scheduled as soon as possible after the employee returns to work. Participants for 
this conference will be the employee, the Department Director, a union representative if 
applicable, and other person(s) deemed appropriate by the Mayor or City Clerk/Personnel 
Director. 
 
Random drug testing will occur for CDL License holders, as mandated by the Federal 
Government order. Employees in positions which are identified as safety sensitive will be 
required to undergo annual random controlled substance/alcohol screening according to 
the Commercial Driver’s License (CDL) policy. Controlled substance/alcohol tests for all 
other employees will be limited to post-incident, situations exhibiting reasonable 







suspicion, or related to safety sensitive employment positions. 
 
Pursuant to the Drug Free Work Place Act of 1988, employees must report to their 
Department Director any conviction under a criminal drug statute for violations occurring 
on the job or during working hours, whether on or off City premises, within 5 days after 
conviction. Violations of any provisions of this substance abuse policy will be considered 
grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including, discharge, even for the first offense. 
Because the City recognizes alcoholism and drug abuse as treatable conditions, 
employees are encouraged to voluntarily refer themselves for professional assistance 
prior to any disciplinary action being initiated. 
Driver's Licenses and Traffic Tickets 
 
An employee whose job requires driving city vehicles or a personal vehicle in conducting 
city business must promptly notify their supervisor if their driver's license is revoked, 
suspended, or restricted in any way. Employees are expected to abide by traffic rules and 
regulations while on duty. An employee who receives a traffic or parking ticket while on 
the job must pay the fine. 
 
CDL Requirements 
 
Any employee whose current position requires the employee to have a valid Commercial 
Driver’s License (CDL) shall immediately inform their Department Director and the City’s 
Personnel Director of any revocation, loss or suspension of their CDL privileges. Upon 
revocation, loss or suspension of the CDL, the employee shall not operate any vehicle of 
the City which requires such licensure. The City may in its sole discretion, temporarily 
reclassify an employee who loses their CDL to the status of CDL exempt.  
 
Reclassification to the status of CDL exempt shall be based upon the following factors: 
the availability of suitable and necessary work within the employee’s current department; 
the employee’s overall employment history, including but not limited to skill set, 
disciplinary record, and attendance record. The City’s application of these factors shall 
not be arbitrary or capricious. 
 
While temporarily reclassified as CDL exempt, the employee’s wage rate shall be 
adjusted accordingly to 90% of employee’s former pay rate during the duration of the 
employee’s CDL exempt status. 
 
An employee’s CDL exempt status shall not exceed three hundred sixty five (365) days. 
Such exempt status may be terminated at any time by the City for good cause. The CDL 
exempt classification is not to be construed as a permanent position and will only apply 
during periods of CDL suspensions. An employee placed on CDL exempt status will be 
expected to perform all of their regular job duties except those requiring a CDL. The 
opportunity for continued employment during a CDL suspension or revocation will only be 
afforded to an employee once during their employment with the City. If a second CDL 
suspension or revocation is imposed upon the employee, they will be deemed unqualified 
to continue in their position and will be subject to dismissal. An employee whose CDL 
licensure is revoked or suspended as a result of work-related incident or other operation 







of a City vehicle is not eligible for CDL exempt status and is subject to immediate 
discharge. 
 
As a condition of being placed on CDL exempt status, the employee agrees to participate 
in and comply with reasonable and necessary driving or substance abuse programs which 
may be established as a condition of reinstatement of the employee’s CDL licensure and 
to provide to the City, upon request, proof of compliance with such programs. 
 


 


Disciplinary Action 


Discipline may result when an employee’s actions do not conform with generally 
accepted standards of good behavior, when an employee violates a policy or rule, when 
an employee’s performance is not acceptable, or when the employee’s conduct is 
detrimental to the interests of the City of Stoughton. Disciplinary action may call for any 
of four steps – verbal warning, written warning, suspension (with or without pay) or 
termination of employment – depending on the problem and the number of 
occurrences. There may be circumstances when one or more steps are bypassed. 
Certain types of employee problems are serious enough to justify either a suspension or 
termination of employment without going through progressive discipline steps. The City 
of Stoughton reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to impose disciplinary action as 
may be appropriate to the particular circumstances. 
 
The City is committed to fair and consistent enforcement of its rules and standards of 
conduct. In evaluating whether disciplinary action is to be taken and, if so, the type of 
disciplinary action, the City will consider all relevant factors including the nature and 
seriousness of the offense, the impact on the City, co-workers, or others associated with 
the City and the employee’s overall employment record. 
 
While the City will generally employ a system of progressive discipline in cases of non-
serious offenses, the City reserves the right to impose such level of discipline as it 
determines appropriate in the circumstances. The rules listed below are by way of 
example and should not be read to in any way limit the City’s right to discipline for any 
reason. Except as otherwise provided under a collective bargaining agreement or under 
an individual contract of employment of fixed duration, all employment with the City is 
considered at-will and nothing in this policy or otherwise in these Work Rules is intended 
or to be construed to create a property right. 
 
The following are grounds for disciplinary actions up to and including discharge as 
determined appropriate by the City:  
 
Grounds for Disciplinary Action (examples only) 
 


 Carelessness resulting in injury, property damage or a dangerous condition 


 Reckless or careless driving while using a City vehicle 


 Release of confidential information 


 Insubordination or failure to perform an assigned task 







 Conduct which reflects unfavorably upon the City as an employer 


 Discourtesy or use of abusive language 


 False statements at the time of employment 


 Dishonesty 


 Falsification of organization records or reports 


 Willingly making a false statement to a supervisor, official, the public, or any City 
board or commission 


 Violation of City ordinance, administrative regulation, department rule, state or 
federal laws that relate to specific job functions 


 Refusal to be examined by City authorized personnel, fully licensed physician or 
intoxilizer operator when so directed, if applicable to position 


 Theft or unauthorized removal of property belonging to another  


 Indecent behavior on City premises 


 Refusal to work overtime during a designated emergency, without justifiable cause 
(Defined emergency = an emergency situation during any period in which the 
health, safety, or welfare of the community is threatened) 


 Violation of, or disregard for, an established safety practice 


 Provoking, instigating, or participating in an activity intended to disrupt the 
established work routine 


 Documented unsatisfactory work performance 


 Unauthorized use or possession of tools, machinery, or equipment 


 Gambling on City property during working hours 


 Loafing, loitering, or otherwise wasting time during work hours 


 Being late for work without permission or notification 


 Misuse of sick leave or other benefits 


 Leaving the work station without permission prior to the scheduled quitting time 


 Violation of harassment policy 


 Possession, transfer, sale or use of controlled substances 


 Possession, or consumption of alcohol while on duty or on City premises 


 Reporting for, or being at work while under the influence of alcohol or controlled 
substance, use of alcohol in circumstances which impairs the person's ability to 
adequately undertake the responsibilities of the position 


 Violation of applicable CDL standards with regard to the use of alcohol prior to 
reporting or while performing safety sensitive functions 


 Refusal to be tested for use of alcohol or controlled substances or tampering with 
the conduct or results of such tests 


 
This list is meant to provide examples only, and is not all inclusive. 
 
Discipline at or below the level of a written warning may be issued by the employee’s 
Department Director with a copy of any such disciplinary action being provided to the City 
Clerk/Personnel Director at the time issued. 
 







Discipline involving a suspension should generally be reviewed with the City 
Clerk/Personnel Director and/or Personnel Committee before being imposed, except 
where immediate suspension is deemed necessary to protect persons or property. 
 
Prior to discharge, the matter will be reviewed by the Personnel Committee, Personnel 
Director and Mayor, as appropriate. 
 
An employee who disagrees with a disciplinary action may request review of the matter 
by the Personnel Committee or its designee. The Personnel Committee will determine 
the type and extent of review to be conducted. The decision of the Personnel Committee 
or its designee is final and not subject to further review. 
 
Disciplinary actions involving employees covered by a collective bargaining agreement 
are subject to such review as the agreement may provide for. Disciplinary actions 
involving sworn personnel are subject to the requirements of sec. 62.13(5), Wis. Stats. 
and any applicable collective bargaining agreement. 
 

































 


 


 


DOT-REGULATED EMPLOYEE ALCOHOL MISUSE PREVENTION 
AND ANTI-DRUG MODEL POLICY 


Issue Date: 


  
Revision(s):   
None 


Pages: 


16 


Policy Source:   


CVMIC 
49 CFR Part 382 & Part 40 


 
I. PURPOSE 


 
The Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA) has issued federal regulations (49 CFR Parts 
40 and 382) implementing the provisions of the federal Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 
1991 which requires alcohol and controlled substance testing of drivers who are required to have a 
commercial driver's license (CDL). These regulations include detailed procedures for urine drug testing 
and breath alcohol testing of employees involved in safety-sensitive functions. The purpose of this policy 
is to establish an alcohol and controlled substances testing program to help prevent accidents, injuries, 
and property damage resulting from the misuse of alcohol and the use of controlled substances by drivers 
of commercial motor vehicles. Consequently, the city of Stoughton has established the following alcohol 
misuse prevention program and anti-drug program as well as subsequent enforcement of violations for its 
employees conducting safety-sensitive functions.   
 
Program Contact 
For additional information or questions, please refer to the Designated Employee Representative (DER); 
Human Resources & Risk Management Director   608.646.0272. 


 
II. POLICY 
 
The City of Stoughton recognizes that the use and/or abuse of alcohol or controlled substances by drivers 
of our commercial motor vehicles present a serious threat to the safety and health of the driver and the 
general public. It is the policy of the City of Stoughton that its drivers should be free of drugs and alcohol 
at all times while performing any work for the organization, or while on any City of Stoughton property. In 
order to further the goal of obtaining a drug-free and alcohol-free environment, and to be in full 
compliance with the DOT-regulated testing requirements of 49 CFR Parts 40 and 382, the City of 
Stoughton has implemented a drug and alcohol testing program which is designed to help reduce and 
prevent vehicle accidents and injuries to the organization’s employees and the public, to discourage 
substance use and alcohol abuse, and to reduce absenteeism, accidents, health care costs, and other 
drug and alcohol-related problems. 


 
III. DEFINITIONS  
 
For the purposes of this policy, the following definitions will apply: 
 
Alcohol means the intoxicating agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl alcohol, or other low weight alcohols 
including methyl and isopropyl alcohol. 
 
Alcohol Use means the consumption of any beverage, mixture or preparation, including medications, 
containing alcohol. 
 
Breath Alcohol Technician (BAT) means an individual certified as trained to operate an Evidential 
Breath Testing Device (EBT) and proficient in breath testing procedures. 
 







 


 


Canceled Test means, in controlled substance testing, that a test that has been declared invalid by the 
MRO.  A canceled test is neither positive nor negative. 


 
Collection Site means a place where individuals present themselves for the purpose of providing body 
fluids or tissue samples to be analyzed for controlled substances, or to provide a breath sample to be 
analyzed for alcohol concentration. 
 
Commercial Motor Vehicle (CMV) means a motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used in 
commerce to transport property or passengers if the motor vehicle: 
 


1. Has a gross combination weight rating of 26,001 or more pounds inclusive of the towed unit with 
a gross vehicle weight of 10,000 pounds; or 


2. Has a gross vehicle weight of 26,001 more pounds, or 
3. Is designed to transport 16 or more passengers inclusive of the driver; or 
4. Is of any size and is used in the transportation of materials found to be hazardous for the purpose 


of the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act and which require the vehicle to display a placard. 
 
Controlled Substance under DOT rule means marijuana, cocaine, opioids, amphetamines, and 
phencyclidine (PCP) or other substances later defined by DOT as controlled substances. 
 
Designated Employer Representative (DER) is an individual identified by the employer as able to 
receive communications and test results from service agents and is authorized to immediately remove 
employees from safety-sensitive functions and make decisions in the testing and evaluation processes.  
The DER must be an employee of the City of Stoughton 
 
Evidential Breath Testing Device (EBT) is a device designed to measure alcohol concentration from 
breath samples which has been approved by the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration. 
 
Laboratory means a laboratory for conducting drug testing that is approved by the Department of Health 
and Human Services. 
 
Medical Review Officer (MRO) means a licensed doctor of medicine or osteopathy with the knowledge 
of drug abuse disorders that is retained by the organization to conduct and analyze drug tests in 
accordance with DOT rules. 
 
Safety-Sensitive Function means the following on duty functions: 
 


1. All time waiting to be dispatched; 
2. All time inspecting, servicing or conditioning any commercial motor vehicle; 
3. All driving time, i.e. all time spent at the driving controls of a commercial motor vehicle in 


operation; 
4. All time, other than driving time, in or upon any commercial motor vehicle; 
5. All time loading or unloading a vehicle, supervising or assisting in the loading or unloading, 


attending a vehicle being loaded or unloaded, remaining in readiness to operate the vehicle, or in 
giving or receiving receipts for shipments loaded or unloaded; 


6. All time repairing, obtaining assistance or remaining in attendance upon a disabled vehicle. 
 
Performing (a safety-sensitive function) means a driver is considered to be performing a safety-
sensitive function during any period in which he or she is actually performing, ready to perform, or 
immediately available to perform a safety-sensitive function. 
 
Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) is a licensed physician (medical doctor or doctor of osteopathy) 
or a licensed or certified psychologist, social worker, employee assistance professional or addiction 
counselor (certified by the National Association of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors Certification 
Commission) with knowledge of and clinical experience in the diagnosis and treatment of alcohol and 
controlled substances-related disorders. 







 


 


IV. POLICY COVERAGE  
This policy applies to every employee (“driver”) who performs “safety sensitive functions” in association 
with the operation of a commercial motor vehicle in commerce in any state, and is subject to the 
commercial driver’s license requirements of part 383 of this subchapter. 


Drivers are also governed by the City of Stoughton’s Non-DOT Drug and Alcohol Use Policy.  In addition, 
transit (bus) drivers may be subject to drug and alcohol testing requirements as outlined in 49 CFR Part 
655 and their department specific policy.   


Condition of Employment 
All drivers subject to this policy are required to submit to DOT drug and alcohol testing and therefore, it is 
a condition of employment 


V. PROHIBITED CONDUCT 
Federal Regulations prohibit City of Stoughton drivers from engaging in the following conduct: 


1. Using or possessing alcohol while on duty. Note: Federal regulations include medications 
containing alcohol in the substances banned from use or possession in the workplace. Therefore, 
drivers should not report for duty while using or possessing medication if such medication 
contains any measurable amount of alcohol;  


2. Using alcohol within eight (8) hours following an accident, unless the employee has already 
undergone DOT-regulated post-accident drug and alcohol testing or is not required to undergo 
post-accident drug or alcohol testing;  


3. Reporting for duty or remaining on duty while having an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater;  
4. Consuming any amount of alcohol within four (4) hours before reporting for duty;  
5. Using controlled substances while on duty, unless the use is pursuant to the instructions of a 


physician who has advised the driver that the substance does not adversely affect the driver's 
ability to safely operate a commercial motor vehicle;  


6. Reporting for duty or remaining on duty if the employee tests positive for controlled substances or 
has adulterated or substituted a specimen for controlled substances; or  


7. Refusing to submit to any alcohol or drug testing required by this policy.  


Refusal to Test 


Refusal to test, in addition to #7 Above, includes: 


    Failing to appear for any test (except a pre-employment test) within a reasonable time, as 


determined by the employer, after being directed to do so. This includes the failure of an 
employee to appear for a test when called. 


    Failing to remain at the testing site until the testing process is complete (except in a pre-


employment testing situation when an applicant leaves the testing site before the testing process 


commences);  


    Failing to provide a urine specimen for any drug test;  


    Failing to provide an adequate amount of saliva or breath for any alcohol test;  


    Failing to permit a directly observed or monitored collection in a drug test;  


    Failing to provide a sufficient amount of urine for the drug test or sufficient breath specimen when 


directed, and it has been determined, through a required medical evaluation, that there was no 


adequate medical explanation for the failure;  


    Failing or declines to take an additional drug test the employer or collector has directed the driver 
to take;  







 


 


    Failing to undergo a medical examination or evaluation, as directed by the MRO as part of the 
verification process or as directed by the employer associated with a shy bladder or insufficient 
breath sample. In the case of a pre-employment drug test, the employee is deemed to have 
refused to test on this basis only if the pre-employment test is conducted following a contingent 
offer of employment. If there was no contingent offer of employment, the MRO will cancel the 
test;  


    Failing to sign the certification at Step 2 of the alcohol testing form;  


    Failing to cooperate with any part of the drug and/or alcohol testing process (e.g., refuse to 


empty pockets when directed by the collector, behave in a confrontational way that disrupts the 


collection process, fail to wash hands after being directed to do so by the collector);  


    For an observed collection, failing to follow the observer’s instructions to raise your clothing 
above the waist, lower clothing and underpants, and to turn around to permit the observer to 
determine if you have any type of prosthetic or other device that could be used to interfere 
with the collection process;  


    Possessing or wearing a prosthetic or other device that could be used to interfere with the 
collection process;  


    Admitting to the organization, collector or MRO that he/she has adulterated or substituted the 
specimen;  


    Providing a specimen that the MRO has determined to have been tampered with, verified 
adulterated or substituted;  


    Failing to comply with any follow-up testing plan/criteria. 


VI. CONSEQUENCES 


Removal from Position 


1. Any driver who engages in prohibited conduct, or otherwise violates the DOT/FMCSA regulations 
will immediately be removed from his/her covered position, including the operation of a 
commercial motor vehicle and the performance of any safety sensitive duties.  


2. The driver shall not return to or assume any DOT covered position with this organization until 
and unless he/she completes the Substance Abuse Professional evaluation, referral, and 
education/ treatment process detailed in Subpart O of 49 CFR Part 40.  


3. A driver with an alcohol test result equal to or greater than 0.020 but less than 0.040, will 
immediately be removed from his/her position for a mandatory period of twenty-four (24) hours. 
When a reasonable suspicion drug and/or alcohol test cannot be administered and the 
employee’s behavior or appearance suggests alcohol misuse or use of a controlled substance, 
he/she will immediately be removed from his/her position for a mandatory period of twenty-four 
(24) hours.  


Disciplinary Action 


In addition to above, any employee who violates any of the rules set forth in this policy is subject to 
discipline, up to and including termination. 


 
 
 
 



http://www.dot.gov/odapc/part40/40_285





 


 


VII. EFFECTS, SIGNS & SYMPTOMS  


Intervention 


A safe and productive drug-free workplace is achieved through cooperation and shared responsibility. If 
substance abuse is contributing to an employee's poor performance, ignoring or avoiding it will not help 
the situation. An employee's use or misuse of alcohol or controlled substances may be the root of the 
performance problem; however, substance abuse on the part of someone close to the employee also 
could be the source. Inevitably, the abuse of alcohol or other controlled substances leads to costly and 
potentially dangerous consequences unless action is taken to confront the issue. 


Impact on Health, Work, & Personal Life 


 


The impact of an individual's substance use and/or abuse extends beyond them. Impaired employees 
endanger themselves, fellow workers, and the general traveling public. Employees with alcohol are less 
productive and more likely to injure themselves or other persons in an accident. Alcohol abusing 
employees increase the costs related to lost productivity, absenteeism, loss of trained personnel, theft, 
and treatment and deterrence programs. 


The struggle for answers about alcohol and drug problems can be difficult. Without expert assessment 
and diagnosis, it can entail an exhausting search without easy resolution. But confidential diagnosis 
and assistance can be helpful at any point along the continuum, and it is better to seek and get such 
help sooner rather than later. 


VIII. REQUIRED TESTS 
Refusal to submit to a required test will result in removal of that driver from his or her assignment(s) 
which, in turn, may result in discipline up to and including termination. The City of Stoughton will test 
drivers in the following situations: 


1. Pre-Employment Testing  
Any individual not currently employed by the City of Stoughton who is applying for a safety-sensitive 
position shall be required to undergo pre-employment controlled substance testing after a conditional 
offer of employment has been extended.   


Prior to the first time an existing employee performs safety-sensitive functions for the organization 
(i.e. new position, promotion, job transfer, etc.); the employee shall be required to undergo testing for 
controlled substances. A positive result will result in a disqualification from further consideration for 
the vacancy or eligibility list. Any applicant or existing employee who refuses to undergo such alcohol 
or drug testing will be disqualified from further consideration for employment in that safety-sensitive 
position. 


2. Post-Accident Testing 
As soon as practicable following an accident involving a commercial motor vehicle, the City of 
Stoughton shall test the driver for alcohol and controlled substances in the following situations: 


a. The accident involves a human fatality, each surviving driver is subject to testing whether they 
were at fault or not; 


b. The driver has received a citation and the accident involved bodily injury requiring immediate 
medical attention from the accident scene; and/or 


c. The driver has received a citation and the accident involved disabling damage causing vehicle or 
vehicles to be towed from the scene of the accident. 


 
Testing Timeframes 


The alcohol breath test should be administered within 2 hours, but must be administered no later than 
8 hours following the accident, and the drug test must be administered within 32 hours of the 







 


 


accident. If the alcohol test is not administered within 2 hours of the accident, or a drug test within 32 
hours of the accident, the supervisor will complete a report explaining the reasons for the delay in 
conducting the test. 


 
Driver Obligations 


A driver who is subject to post-accident testing shall remain readily available and may not take any 
action to interfere with the testing or the results of the testing.    


The driver shall notify his/her immediate supervisor as soon as possible if they are involved in an 
accident.  After the initial call to the employer, the driver is required to remain in contact with his/her 
supervisor with any subsequent information pertinent to the accident, including contact by any law 
enforcement agency, issuance of a citation, etc. 


The driver shall allow law enforcement to conduct their investigation. It is possible for a federal, 
state, or local law enforcement official to direct an employee, who is in the course of conducting 
City of Stoughton business, to submit to drug and/or alcohol testing. In this case, the employee 
shall provide the results of that testing to the employer as soon as they become available. These 
results may be used in lieu of or in addition to post-accident testing outlined in this section. 


3. Random Testing 
Drivers are subject to unannounced DOT/FMCSA random drug and alcohol testing.  Testing 
percentages are established annually by the FMCSA.  The random selection process ensures that 
each driver has an equal chance of being selected and tested.  Some drivers may be tested more 
than once each year; some may not be tested at all depending on the random selection.  However, 
once a driver has been notified of his/her selection for testing, they must immediately report for 
testing.  Failure to show for a test within a reasonable time from the time of notification or interfering 
with the testing process is considered a refusal to test.  An employee shall only be tested for alcohol 
during, just before or just after the performance of safety sensitive functions. 


4. Reasonable Suspicion Testing 
An employee is required to submit to an alcohol or controlled substance test upon a trained (in 
accordance with this policy and Section 382.603 requirements) supervisor’s reasonable suspicion to 
believe that the employee is in violation of this policy.  The determination of reasonable suspicion 
must be based on specific, contemporaneous, articulable observations concerning the appearance, 
behavior, speech or body odors of the employee.  The observations may include indications of the 
chronic and withdrawal effects of controlled substances.  The supervisor who makes the 
determination that reasonable suspicion exists to conduct an alcohol test shall not conduct the 
alcohol test of the employee. 


 
Under DOT regulations, alcohol testing is only authorized if observations are made during, just 
preceding or just after the period of the work day that the employee is required to be in compliance 
(during, just before or after the employee has performed safety-sensitive functions).  However, the 
City of Stoughton policy requires that reasonable suspicion alcohol testing shall be performed at any 
time during an employee’s work day. 
 
Under DOT regulations, the employee will not be permitted to perform safety sensitive functions until: 
(1) an alcohol test is administered and the alcohol concentration measures less than 0.02; or (2) 24 
hours have elapsed following the determination that there was reasonable suspicion to test the 
employee.  However, City of Stoughton policy requires that an employee will not be returned to work 
until confirmed test results are obtained. 
 
If an alcohol test is not administered within two (2) hours following the reasonable suspicion 
determination, the supervisor must prepare and maintain on file a record stating the reasons the 
alcohol test was not promptly administered.  If an alcohol test is not administered within eight (8) 
hours following the reasonable suspicion determination, the supervisor must cease attempts to 







 


 


administer an alcohol test and shall state in the record the reasons for not administering the test.  In 
addition, the driver will be out of service for 24 hours. 


 
The supervisor who made the observations shall provide a report that contains the observations 
leading to an alcohol or controlled substances reasonable suspicion test within 24 hours of the 
observed behavior or before the results of the alcohol or controlled substances tests are released, 
whichever is earlier. 
 
Reasonable Suspicion Policy 


 


1. Upon the employee’s removal from the job site, the supervisor should contact the Director of 


Human Resources and Risk Management. If contact cannot be made at that time, the supervisor 
should proceed to the next step of this procedure and make contact with the Human Resources & 
Risk Management Director as soon as possible.   


2. The supervisor is to then take the employee to the collection site for drug and/or alcohol testing, 
and must remain at the site until the test is completed. 


3. If the alcohol test is conducted more than two (2) hours, but less than eight (8) hours, after the 
supervisor makes the reasonable suspicion determination, the supervisor will complete a report 
explaining the reason for the delay in conducting the test.  If the alcohol test is not conducted 
within eight (8) hours after the supervisor makes such reasonable suspicion determination, or if 
the drug test is not conducted within twenty-four (24) hours after such determination, the 
supervisor will complete a report explaining the reasons why the test was not conducted. 


4. Once the drug and/or alcohol test has been completed the supervisor is to make arrangements 
for the employee to be taken home.  The employee will not be permitted to drive their own car 
home at that time.  The employee may have a family member or a friend pick them up or the 
supervisor may take the employee home. 


5. The employee is to be advised not to report to work.  The City of Stoughton HR/RM Director will 
contact the employee once the test results are known (this normally takes 24-48 hours) and a 
decision has been made as to the employee’s status. 


6. The results of the drug and/or alcohol test will be sent directly to the Director of Human 
Resources & Risk Management.   When the results are obtained, the employee’s supervisor and 
department head will meet with the Director of HR/RM to determine the appropriate course of 
action to be taken. 


7. This is a confidential process.  Test results will be held strictly confidential and are not to be 
discussed or shared with anyone who does not need to know.  Likewise, a supervisor must not 
discuss the suspected reason for a referral or termination with anyone who does not need to 
know. 


8. Once the test has been completed and the employee has been taken home, the supervisor must 
submit a written report to ________________ outlining in detail what happened and what 
behavior was observed that led the supervisor to believe the employee was under the influence of 
alcohol and/or drugs.  This report is to be done within 24 hours of testing.     


5. Return-to-Duty/Follow-up Testing 
The requirements for return-to-duty testing must be performed in compliance with the Substance 
Abuse Professional process detailed in Subpart O of 49 CFR Part 40.  In summary, the driver shall 
not return to a driver position, whether with the City of Stoughton unless and until he/she completes 
all requirements of Subpart O.  Once those requirements have been met, the driver must complete 
and receive negative test results associated with return-to-duty testing.  The alcohol test must be 
.000. 
 
The requirements for follow up testing must be performed in compliance with the Substance Abuse 
Professional process detailed in Subpart O of 49 CFR Part 40.  In summary, once the driver returns 
to his/her position, they will be subject to a follow up testing plan as prescribed by the Substance 
Abuse Professional.  Follow up testing includes, but is not limited to, a minimum of six unannounced 







 


 


follow up tests in the first twelve months of returning to his/her position.  Additional testing may occur 
for up to forty-eight months following the initial first twelve-month period. 


IX. SELF ADMISSION 
The City of Stoughton strives to maintain a safe and drug free work environment.  Alcohol and drug 
use on the job poses a serious threat to the safety of our employees and the general public.  
However, the organization also understands the addictive nature of alcohol and certain drugs.  The 
organization greatly values and cares about all employees, and will make every effort to assist any 
employee who comes forward and admits the need for help or treatment. To this end, the City of 
Stoughton has created a qualified self-admission program as detailed in its Non-DOT policy which 
complies with the DOT regulations by incorporating the following required elements:  


    The City of Stoughton will not take any adverse action (loss of seniority, position, title, etc.) 
against any employee who makes a voluntary admission of having an alcohol or drug problem.  


    In the event of a voluntary self-admission, the organization is required to remove the employee 
from performing, and the employee will be prohibited from performing, or continuing to perform, 
any safety sensitive functions. 


    Self-admitting employees will be given the opportunity to seek treatment (at the employee’s 
expense).  The organization shall ensure that the employee is provided sufficient opportunity to 
seek evaluation, education or treatment to establish control over his or her drug or alcohol 
problem; 


    In order to be permitted to resume performing safety sensitive functions for the City of Stoughton. 


    The organization must be satisfied with and approve the employee’s treatment option/program.   


    The employee must successfully complete the treatment program, and provide 
documentation/certification of completion (as determined by a drug and alcohol abuse evaluation 
expert, i.e., employee assistance professional, substance abuse professional, or qualified drug 
and alcohol counselor).   


Further, the City of Stoughton must ensure that: 


    Prior to the employee participating in a safety sensitive function, the employee shall undergo a 
return-to-duty test (at the employee’s expense) with a result indicating an alcohol concentration of 
less than 0.02; and/or  


    A return-to-duty controlled substance (at the employee’s expense) test with a verified negative 
test result for controlled substances use; and 


    The organization may incorporate employee monitoring and include non-DOT follow-up testing 
(at the employee’s own expense).  


Employees who admit to alcohol misuse or controlled substances use, are subject to the above 
procedures, but will not be subject to the referral, evaluation and treatment requirements set forth in 
49 CFR Part 40, Subpart O, provided that:  


    The driver does not self-identify in order to avoid testing under the requirements of this policy;  


    The driver does not make the admission of alcohol misuse or controlled substances use prior to 
performing a safety-sensitive function (i.e., prior to reporting for duty); and  


    The driver does not perform a safety-sensitive function until the City of Stoughton is satisfied that 
the employee has been evaluated and has successfully completed education or treatment 
requirements in accordance with the self-identification program guidelines.  


X. TESTING PROCEDURES 
Drug testing establishes the presence of a drug or drugs at or above the minimum cut-off concentration 
levels.  The drugs for which tests are conducted include, but are not limited to, marijuana (THC), cocaine, 
amphetamines, phencyclidine (PCP), and opioids.  The cut-off concentration levels for these substances 
are consistent with those defined in 49 CFR Part 40.  







 


 


Alcohol testing determines the presence of alcohol based on alcohol concentration levels. Alcohol 
concentration (or content) means the alcohol in a volume of breath expressed in terms of grams of 
alcohol per 210 liters of breath as indicated by an evidential breath test. Alcohol use means the drinking 
or swallowing of any beverage, liquid mixture or preparation (including any medication), containing 
alcohol. 


Before the testing process can begin, the employee must present a valid photo ID (such as a driver’s 
license, state issued identification card, employer ID, etc.). 


Alcohol Testing 


Initial Testing 


An alcohol testing form (ATF) is used to document the alcohol testing process. The Breath Alcohol 
Technician (BAT) will conduct an initial breath test and if the result is 0.020 or greater, a confirmation 
test is required.  The collector completes Step 1 and the employee is required to sign Step 2 in order for 
the test to proceed. The employee provides an adequate amount of breath so the device can analyze it 
and provide the result. The BAT and employee observe the test results, which are then recorded on the 
ATF. If the test result is less than .020, the result is considered negative. The collector completes Step 3 
and the collection process is complete. If the initial test result is 0.020 or greater, the employee is 
required to complete a confirmation test. 


Confirmation Testing 


A 15-minute wait period will be observed prior to the confirmation test being administered. The wait 
period allows an opportunity for any accumulation of residual mouth alcohol to dissipate and will 
prevent an artificially high reading. The confirmation test result is administered following an air blank on 
the testing device. Once the results are received, they must electronically print on ATF. 


Confirmation test result equal to or less than 0.019 is considered negative; no further action is 
required. Confirmation test result equal to or greater than .020 but less than .040 requires the 
employee to immediately be removed from his/her position for a minimum of 24 hours or until their next 
regularly scheduled shift. An alcohol test result equal to or greater than 0.040 is considered a positive 
test result. The employee is directed to read and sign Step 4; if the employee refuses to sign Step 4, it 
will have no bearing on the result, but will be documented on the ATF. 


The confirmation test results are those the organization will rely on when determining further action, if 
any. 


DOT Drug Testing  


The drug testing processes and protocols are compliant with those mandated by 49 CFR Part 40. The 
collector utilizes a custody and control form to document the collection process. The collector will 
provide a brief summary regarding the steps to complete the collection process. The driver is provided 
privacy to provide his/her specimen, immediately returns the specimen to the collector, and observes 
the temperature along with the collector. The collector splits the specimen into bottles A & B, seals each 
container and dates the label.  The employee initials each label. The paperwork and specimens are 
sent to a laboratory certified by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. 


Laboratory 


The laboratory is certified by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services and utilizes 
approved techniques and equipment to analyze the specimen. The laboratory conducts validity testing 
to determine if the specimen is consistent with normal human urine and to determine whether certain 
adulterants or foreign substances were added to the urine, if the urine was diluted, or if the specimen 
was substituted. Drug testing establishes the presence of a drug or drugs at or above the minimum 
cut-off concentration levels. 


For initial drug testing, an immunoassay technique is used. If the presence of drugs is detected at or 
above the minimum cut-off concentration levels, a confirmation test is required. For confirmation testing, 
a second analytical procedure is conducted by gas chromatography/ mass spectrometry (GC/MS) 







 


 


technology. The procedure is used to further support a validity test result and/or identify and quantify the 
presence of a specific drug or drug metabolite at or above the minimum thresholds. 


All test results are reported to the Medical Review Officer. 


Medical Review Officer (MRO) 


The MRO serves as an independent, impartial gatekeeper regarding the accuracy and integrity of the 
drug testing program. As a safeguard to quality and accuracy, the MRO reviews each test for 
accuracy. 


When the laboratory reports non-negative results (i.e., confirmed positive, adulterated, substituted, or 
invalid drug test result), the MRO conducts a verification process with the employee. During this 
process, he/she will obtain information to determine if an alternative medical explanation for the test 
result exists. 


If the MRO determines that a legitimate medical use exists, the drug test result is reported as negative 
to the employer. However, even if there is a legitimate medical explanation and verifies a test negative, 
the MRO has a responsibility to raise fitness-for-duty considerations with the employer. 


When no legitimate medical reason is established, the MRO will report the applicable result to the 
employer. 


XI. CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES/ OTC/ PRESCRIPTION MEDICATIONS 
Before performing any work-related duties, employees must notify their supervisor if they are taking any 
legally prescribed medication, therapeutic drug (to include the use of CBD Oils), or any non-prescription 
(over-the-counter) drug especially if it contains any measurable amount of alcohol or if it carries a warning 
label that indicates the employee's mental functioning, motor skills, or judgment may be adversely 
affected by the use of this medication. It is the responsibility of the employee to inform their physician of 
the type of safety-sensitive function that they perform in order that the physician may determine if the 
prescribed substance could interfere with the safe and effective performance of their duties or operation 
of City of Stoughton vehicles and other equipment. However, as required by the Federal Regulations, any 
employee who uses or possesses medication containing alcohol or any substance which would cause a 
positive test while on duty or who tests positive for alcohol or controlled substance(s) will be removed 
from his or her position, and subject to the provisions of this policy, even though the reason for the 
positive test is the fact that the employee's prescription medication contains alcohol or a controlled 
substance. 


A legally prescribed drug is one in which the employee has a prescription or other written approval from a 
physician for the use of the drug in the course of medical treatment. The prescription must include the 
patient's name, the name of the substance, quantity/amount to be taken, and the period of authorization. 
The misuse or abuse of legal drugs while performing City of Stoughton business or on City of Stoughton 
property is prohibited by this policy.  


Special Note for Rx Opioids:  
Historically, the DOT’s regulation required the MRO to report your medication use/medical information to 
a third party (e.g. your employer, health care provider responsible for your medical qualifications, etc.), if 
the MRO determines in his/her reasonable medical judgement that you may be medically unqualified 
according to DOT Agency regulations, or if your continued performance is likely to pose a significant 
safety risk.  The MRO may report this information even if the MRO verifies your drug test result as 
‘negative’. 


As of ENTER APPROVED DATE HERE prior to the MRO reporting your information to a third party you 
will have up to five days to ensure your prescribing physician contacts the MRO.  Under DOT rule, the 
driver is responsible for facilitating the contact between the MRO and the prescribing physician.  
The prescribing physician should be willing to state to the MRO that you can safely perform your safety-







 


 


sensitive functions while taking the medication(s), or consider changing your medication to one that does 
not make you “medically unqualified” and/or does not pose a significant safety risk. 


If the MRO and prescribing physician cannot agree on a resolution regarding the prescription and 
conclude the driver must remain “medically unqualified” the City of Stoughton will either place the driver 
on administrative leave, offer modified duty-not to include performance of any safety sensitive functions, 
and/or evaluate if the driver qualifies under FMLA as appropriate.  During this time, as the driver is unable 
to perform safety sensitive functions and likely unable to perform all the essential functions of their job, an 
ADA interactive process may begin, as required, to help determine reasonable accommodations (if any) 
for the driver.   


XII. CONFIDENTIALITY OF RECORDS 
Procedures used for drug and alcohol testing follow the requirements of 49 CFR Part 40 to protect the 
driver and the integrity of the testing processes, safeguard the validity of the test results, and ensure that 
those results are attributed to the correct driver.  The City of Stoughton will strictly adhere to all standards 
of confidentiality to ensure drivers testing records and results will be released only to those authorized by 
the FMCSA rules to receive such information.  


As required, the following personal information collected and maintained under DOT requirements shall 
be reported to the Clearinghouse: 


1. A verified positive, adulterated, or substituted drug test result; 
2. An alcohol confirmation test with a concentration of 0.04 or higher; 
3. A refusal to submit to any test required by subpart C of this part; 
4. An employer's report of actual knowledge, as defined at §382.107: 
5. On duty alcohol use pursuant to §382.205; 
6. Pre-duty alcohol use pursuant to §382.207; 
7. Alcohol use following an accident pursuant to §382.209; and 
8. Controlled substance use pursuant to §382.213; 
9. A substance abuse professional (SAP as defined in §40.3 of this title) report of the 


successful completion of the return-to-duty process; 
10. A negative return-to-duty test; and 
11. An employer's report of completion of follow-up testing. 


XIII. EMPLOYEE EDUCATION 
As required by Federal Regulations, supervisors of CDL holders will be required to attend two hours of 
drug and alcohol education. One hour will cover alcohol misuse and the other hour will cover controlled 
substances use. The training shall cover the physical, behavioral, speech, and work performance 
indicators of probable alcohol misuse and use of controlled substances.  Documentation of this training 
will be maintained by Human Resources and will be available for review. 


For regulated employees who possess a CDL, the City of Stoughton will also provide each employee with 
a copy of this policy relating to drug and alcohol use.  This policy provides basic information concerning 
the effects of alcohol and controlled substances use on a person’s health, work, and personal life; signs 
and symptoms of an alcohol or controlled substance problem; and available methods of intervening when 
an alcohol or controlled substance problem is suspected, including confrontation, referral to any 
employee assistance program and/or referral to management (see below). 


XIV.  CERTIFICATE OF RECEIPT 
The City of Stoughton shall ensure that each driver is required to sign a statement certifying that he or 
she has received a copy of this policy and materials.  The organization shall maintain the original of the 
signed certificate and may provide a copy of the certificate to the driver. 







 


 


 


 







 


 


WHAT ARE THE AFFECTS OF ALCOHOL AND DRUGS ON THE BODY 
 
ALCOHOL 
A central nervous system depressant, alcohol is the most widely abused drug.  About half of all auto 
accident fatalities in this country are related to alcohol abuse. 
 
How Much is Too Much? 
Consider that a 12-ounce beer, a 5-ounce glass of wine, and a 1.5 ounce shot of liquor contain about the 
same amount of alcohol.  For the average to larger person (170#) and petite to small person (125#) the 
following approximate BACs can be expected: 
 
     170# person  125# person 
  1 drink in 1 hour  .015%   .025% 
  2 drinks in 1 hour .04%   .075% 
  7 drinks in 1 hour .10%   .175% 
 


The Removal of Alcohol From The Body 
 


 Blood alcohol concentrations in the average person usually decrease at the rate of .012 to .02% 
per hour 


 For a given person, the rate of elimination is nearly constant regardless of the % of alcohol in the 
body 


 Coffee, cold showers, and exercise do not quicken sobriety. 
 


To demonstrate this, here is a chart that shows what happens when a person goes to bed 
intoxicated with a blood alcohol level of .250 


 
  Time     Activity           Blood Alcohol 
  1:00 AM    Goes to Bed           .250 
  5:00 AM    Get Up for Work         .190 
  7:00 AM    Reports for Work         .160 
  8:00 AM    Still Legally Intoxicated       .145 
  9:00 AM    Driving Erratically         .140 
  11:00 AM    Still Legally Intoxicated – car      .100 
  3:00 PM    Quitting Time – Still Intoxicated CDL   .040 
 
Alcohol first acts on those parts of the brain that affect self-control and other learned behaviors.  Low self-
control often leads to the aggressive behavior associated with some people who drink.  In large doses, 
alcohol can dull sensation and impair muscular coordination, memory and judgment.  Taken in larger 
quantities over a long period of time, alcohol can damage the liver and heart and cause permanent brain 
damage.  On the average, heavy drinkers shorten their life span by about 10 years. 
 
Other Effects: 
*  greatly impaired driving ability *  overindulgence (hangover) can cause 
*  reduced coordination and reflex action  *  headaches/unclear thinking 
*  impaired vision and judgment *  nausea/unsettled digestion 
*  impaired vision and judgment  *  dehydration/aching muscles 
*  inability to divide attention  
     
1. MARIJUANA 
Marijuana is also called grass pot weed Mary Jane herb joint reefer, among other street names.  
Marijuana may impair or reduce short-term memory and comprehension, alter sense of time, and reduce 
ability to perform tasks requiring concentrations and coordination, such as driving. 


 
NOTE: While alcohol dissipates in a matter of hours, marijuana stays in the body for four weeks or more! 
 







 


 


Other Effects: 
 


 driving impaired for at least 4-6 hours after smoking 1 joint 
 restlessness, inability to concentrate 
 increased pulse rate and blood pressure 
 altered sense of identity 
 impaired memory, dulling of attention 
 hallucinations, fantasies and paranoia 
 reduction or temporary loss of fertility 


 
2. COCAINE 
Cocaine is a stimulant drug, which increases heart rate and blood pressure.  As a powder, it is inhaled, 
ingested, or injected. It is often called coke" snow, blow, nose candy, and white.  Cocaine is also used as 
a free-base cocaine known as crack or rock, which is smoked. 
 
The most dangerous effects of crack is that it can cause vomiting, rapid heart rate, tremors, and 
convulsive movements.  All of this muscle activity increases the demand for oxygen, which can result in a 
cocaine-induced heart attack.  Since the heat regulating center in the brain is also disrupted, dangerously 
high body temperatures can occur.  With high doses, brain functioning, breathing and heart beat are 
depressed – leading to death. 
 
Other Effects: 
 


 a rush of pleasurable sensation 
 heightened, but momentary feeling of confidence, strength and endurance 
 paranoia, mood swings, anxiety 
 irritation of the nostrils and nasal membrane 
 reduced sense of humor 
 compulsive behavior such as teeth grinding or repeated hand washing 


 
3. AMPHETAMINES: 
Amphetamines can cause increased heart and respiratory rates, and promote a feeling of alertness and 
an increase in speech and general physical activity.  It is often called speed uppers pep pills black 
beauties bennies and hearts.   
 
NOTE: People with a history of sustained low-dose use often become dependent and believe they need 
the drug to get by.  These users frequently keep taking amphetamines to avoid the “down” mood or crash 
they experience when the ‘high’ wears off. 
 
Even small infrequent doses can produce toxic effects in some people.  Restlessness, anxiety, moody 
swings, panic, heart beat disturbances, paranoid thoughts, hallucinations, convulsions, and coma have 
been reported.  Long-term users often have acne resembling measles, trouble with their teeth, gums and 
nails, and dry, dull hair.  Heavy, frequent doses can produce brain damage resulting in speech 
disturbances. 
 
Other Effects: 
 
*  loss of appetite *  short term insomnia 
*  exaggerated reflexes *  difficulty focusing eyes 
*  distorted thinking *  increased blood pressure 
*  irritability, anxiety, apprehension *  perspiration, headaches, dizziness 
*  increased heart rate  
    
4. OPIOIDS 
Opioids, including heroin, morphine, and codeine are narcotics used to relieve pain and induce sleep.  
Common street names include, "junk" "smack" "brown sugar" "Harry" or "big H". 







 


 


 
NOTE: Heroin accounts for 90% of the narcotic abuse in this country 
 
Sometimes narcotics found in medicines are abused.  This includes pain relievers containing opium and 
cough syrups containing codeine.  Heroin is illegal, and cannot even be obtained with a physician’s 
prescription. 
 
Other Effects: 
 
*  short-lived state of euphoria *  decreased physical activity 
*  impaired driving ability  *  reduced vision 
*  drowsiness followed by sleep  *  change in sleep habits 


*  constipation  *  possible death 


 
5. PHENCYCLIDINE (PCP): 
Also called angel dust rocket fuel super kools and killer weed, it was developed as a surgical anesthetic in 
the late 50’s.  Later, due to unusual side effects in humans, it was restricted to use as a veterinary 
anesthetic and tranquilizer.  Today, it has no lawful use and is no longer legally manufactured. 


 
NOTE:  PCP is a very dangerous drug.  It can produce violent and bizarre behavior even in people not 
otherwise prone to such behavior.  More people die from accidents caused by erratic behavior produced 
by the drug than from the drug’s direct effect on the body. 
 
PCP scrambles the brain/s internal stimuli and alters how users see and deal with their environment.  
Routine activities like driving and walking become very difficult. 
 
Other Effects: 
 
*  impaired driving ability  *  drowsiness 
*  perspiration *  repetitive speech patterns 
*  Incomplete verbal responses *  blank star 
*  thick, slurred speech  *  involuntary eye movement 


                 
Additional information about the City of Stoughton Drug & Alcohol Program is available from: 


 
Designated Employer Representative (DER): 


 
 


Name: Human Resources & Risk Management Director       Phone: (608) 646-0272 







 


 


 


EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM 


Detach and return this page to the City of Stoughton’s Designated Employee Representative or your 
Supervisor, Lead, Manager or Director. 


I acknowledge that I have received the City of Stoughton’s Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy and that this 
policy has been reviewed with me in a training session conducted by the _______________.   


I understand that the terms described in this policy may be altered, amended, or changed by the City of 
Stouighton at any time or in order to comply with changes or revisions to federal law, with or without prior 
notice.  


 


EMPLOYEE PRINTED NAME_____________________________________________ 


SIGNATURE________________________________________________ 


DATE_____________________________________________________ 







 


 


 





















Council Approved INSERT DATE 


 


 


         PARKS & RECREATION 


 Adult Softball Program Supervisor 
 


City of Stoughton 


PAY GRADE: Not Graded                                                                             FLSA: N  


 
REPORTS TO:  Recreation Supervisor 


 


SUMMARY OF POSITION: 
The Adult Softball Program Supervisor is responsible for the supervision of all adult softball 
games.  


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 


position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 
may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 
 


 Demonstrate good communication skills. 


 


 Work with teams to start games on-time and maintain game times throughout 


the evening. 


 


 Work with teams so that game score cards are turned in and filled out correctly. 


 


 Distribute game balls and scorecards to teams.   


 


 Arrive on time to ensure that the diamonds are in safe playing condition. 


 


 Provide friendly customer service and a welcoming environment to players, 


coaches and spectators. 


 


 Report incidents and concerns to the Parks & Recreation Director in a timely 


manner (within 24 hours). 


 


 Collect, manage, and return the equipment to the proper place in good working 


condition. 


 


 Open and close shelter, including turning on and off ball field lights.  


 


 Enforce park rules to players. 


 


 Ensure that games run smoothly by providing rule clarifications and promoting a 


civil, sportsmanlike atmosphere. 







Council Approved INSERT DATE 


 


 Attend all necessary program meetings. 


 


 Other duties as assigned. 


 
QUALIFICATIONS: 


The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications 


 
 Strong leadership skills 


 
 Prior experience in a supervisory role 


 


 18+ years old 
 


Program Goals 


 Provide an opportunity for physical activity and competition. 
 


 Promote sportsmanship and cooperation. 


 
Supervisory Skills 
 


 Ability to supervise. 
 


Environmental Adaptability: 
 


 Ability to work effectively in an outdoor environment, with exposure to outdoor 


conditions including varying temperatures and precipitation. 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 
state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 


individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 
discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 


 







Council Approved INSERT DATE 


 


 


 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


 


         PARKS & RECREATION 


          Adult Softball Umpire 
 


City of Stoughton 


GRADE: NOT GRADED                                                                                    FLSA: N 


 
REPORTS TO:  Recreation Supervisor 


 


SUMMARY OF POSITION: 
The Adult Softball Umpire is responsible for the officiating of all adult softball games.  


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 


position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 
may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 


 Demonstrate good communication skills 


 Interpret and enforce ASA (Amateur Softball Association) rules and local rule 


adaptations on the field throughout the game. 


 Supervise and control the general conduct of all participants in the game. 


 Invoke and impose penalties for violations of adopted rules. 


 Make decisions on any point not specifically covered in rules. 


 Start and end games according to the schedule or weather cancellation policy. 


 Examine safety of equipment and playing area in compliance with rules. 


 Wear Recreation Department issued umpire uniform. 


 Complete pay sheet. 


 Must arrive 15 minutes early before game time. 


 Communicate with participants and managers in a professional manner. 


 Report incidents and concerns to the supervisor in a timely manner (within 24 


hours). 


 Help put away bases and other equipment. 


 Attend all necessary program meetings. 


 Other duties as assigned. 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


QUALIFICATIONS: 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 


 
Education/Training/Certifications 


 
 Strong leadership skills 


 Strong decision making skills 


 Prior experience as an umpire required 


 18+ years old 


 
Program Goals 


 Provide an opportunity for physical activity and competition. 
 


 Promote sportsmanship and cooperation. 


 


Environmental Adaptability: 
 


 Ability to work effectively in an outdoor environment, with exposure to outdoor 


conditions including varying temperatures and precipitation. 


 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 


state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 
individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 
discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


               PARKS & RECREATION 


               Flag Football Assistant  


                        Little Gridders (Pre-K) 
 


City of Stoughton 


GRADE: NOT GRADED                                                                                     FLSA: N 


 
REPORTS TO:  Recreation Supervisor 


 


SUMMARY OF POSITION: 
Little Gridders Flag Football Assistants are responsible for setup and take down of 
equipment, and assisting with coaching activities. 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 
position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 


may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 
 


 This is an on field teaching coaching position. The person must be self driven and 


able to plan practices, drills and other skill building activities. 


 Demonstrate good communication skills. 


 Set up and take down equipment.  


 Must be upbeat and energetic and energetic while interacting with kids. 


 Provide friendly customer service and a welcoming environment to each player. 


 Report incidents and concerns to the supervisor in a timely manner (within 24 


hours). 


 Collect, manage, and return the equipment in good working condition. 


 Attend all necessary program meetings. 


 Other duties as assigned. 


 


QUALIFICATIONS: 


The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications 


 
 Strong leadership skills. 


 Ability to stand for up to 2 hours at a time. 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 Knowledge about the sport of football. 


 15+ years old 


 
Program Goals 


 Develop a passion of sports in each child. 
 


 Maximize each practice time to improve physical fitness in each child. 
 


 Develop fundamental movement skills.  


 
Environmental Adaptability: 
 


 Ability to work effectively in an outdoor environment, with exposure to outdoor 


conditions including varying temperatures and precipitation. 


 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 
state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 


individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 
discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


                PARKS & RECREATION 


            Front Desk Staff – Troll Beach 


 


City of Stoughton 


GRADE: NOT GRADED                                                                                   FLSA: N 


 
REPORTS TO:  Recreation Supervisor 


 


SUMMARY OF POSITION: 
Under the general supervision of the Recreation Supervisor, Troll Beach Supervisor and Troll 


Beach Head Guard(s), the Front Desk Staff position at Troll Beach is responsible for greeting 
patrons and guests of Troll Beach in a friendly and courteous manner; in addition to 
collecting payment from those entering the facility.   


 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 


Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 
position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 
may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 


 


 Performs various front desk admission duties, including but not limited to: 


greeting and assisting patrons, checking pool passes to ensure they are being 


utilized by authorized individuals, collecting fees for admittance, and maintaining 


records of patrons entering the facility.  


 Operates cash register – accepts payments and makes accurate change.  


 Balances daily cash against the cash register tape at the end of assigned shift. 


 Assists with the cleaning of Troll Beach facility and equipment as directed. 


 Attends staff meetings and participates in employee training sessions as 


required. 


 Assists with additional responsibilities assigned by Recreation Supervisor, Troll 


Beach Supervisor and Troll Beach Head Guard(s).  


 


QUALIFICATIONS: 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 


 
Education/Training/Certifications 
 


 Experience in cash handling, including basic addition and subtraction.  


 Knowledge of and ability to utilize proper telephone etiquette.  







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 Must be able to communicate effectively with the general public and other pool staff. 


 15+ years old 


 
Program Goals 


 Develop a passion of sports in each child. 
 


 Maximize each practice time to improve physical fitness in each child. 
 


 Develop fundamental movement skill. 


 
Environmental Adaptability: 


 
 Ability to work effectively in an outdoor environment, with exposure to outdoor 


conditions including varying temperatures and precipitation. 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 


state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 
individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 
discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 







Council Approved INSERT DATE 


  


         PARKS & RECREATION 


         Lifeguard – Troll Beach 
 
 


City of Stoughton 


GRADE: NOT GRADED                                                                                   FLSA: N 
 


REPORTS TO: Recreation Supervisor 


 
SUMMARY OF POSITION: 


Under the general supervision of the Troll Beach Supervisor and Troll Beach Head Guard(s), 
the Lifeguard position at Troll Beach is responsible for maintaining the safety of the patrons 
in and around the pool. They must communicate and enforce all regulations and pool rules 


in a personable and professional manner.   
 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 
position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 


may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 
 


 Ensures the health, safety and welfare of those using the Troll Beach pool 


facilities. 


 


 Supervises the activities of the pool patrons by enforcing rules and regulations. 


 


 Performs pool maintenance and facility cleaning duties. 


 


 Responds to emergency situations; administers first aid and primary care as 


needed. 


 


 Assists the public as necessary by providing program information, answering 


public inquiries, handling or referring complaints, posting notices and 


interpreting pool rules and policies.  


 


 Attends all mandatory in-service trainings and staff meetings as required. 


 


 
QUALIFICATIONS: 


The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 


Education/Training/Certifications 
 







Council Approved INSERT DATE 


 Must be at least 16 years of age. 
 


 Must have current certification in Red Cross Lifeguard/First Aid/ CPR/AED. 


 
 Must be able to effectively communicate with the general public and pool staff. 


 
 Must be willing to work flexible hours including nights and weekends. 


 


Knowledge and Abilities 


 Excellent customer service skills – this position serves as an ambassador for the City 
and must engage patrons and participants in a respectful, professional and positive 
demeanor.  
 


 Must be able to withstand frequent standing, walking and sitting. 
 


 Must have working knowledge of the principles and practices of Lifeguard Training, 
CPR/AED and First Aid. 
 


 Proficient swimming ability and attentiveness to visual and audible cues for 
recognition and identification of swimmers in distress or in the process of unsafe 
behaviors. 


 


Supervisory Skills 
 


 Ability to supervise and enforce rules & regulations of pool use. 


 
Environmental Adaptability: 


 
 Ability to work effectively in an outdoor environment, with exposure to outdoor 


conditions including varying temperatures and precipitation. 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 


state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 
individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 


discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 


 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


               PARKS & RECREATION 


       Physical Literacy Program Assistant 


 


City of Stoughton 


GRADE: NOT GRADED                                                                                  FLSA: N 


 
REPORTS TO:  Recreation Supervisor 


 


SUMMARY OF POSITION: 
The Physical Literacy Program Assistants are responsible for helping setup and take down 
equipment and assisting with instructing the Music and Little Movers, Sports Sampler and 
Pick-Up Park Sports recreation programs.  


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 
position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 


may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 
 


 This is an in person instructional position, and is responsible for supervising each 


activity.  


 Demonstrate good communication skills. 


 Set up and take down equipment. 


 Must be upbeat and energetic and energetic while interacting with kids. 


 Provide friendly customer service and a welcoming environment to each 


participant. 


 Report incidents and concerns to the supervisor in a timely manner (within 24 


hours). 


 Collect, manage, and return the equipment in good working condition. 


 Attend all necessary program meetings and trainings. 


 Other duties as assigned. 


 


QUALIFICATIONS: 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 


 
Education/Training/Certifications 
 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 Strong leadership skills 


 Ability to stand for up to 2 hours at a time 


 Experience with children ages 3+ 


 15+ years old 


 


Program Goals 


 Develop a passion of recreational activities in each child. 
 


 Maximize each activity time to improve physical fitness in each child. 
 


 Develop fundamental recreational skills. 


 


Environmental Adaptability: 
 


 Ability to work effectively in an outdoor environment, with exposure to outdoor 


conditions including varying temperatures and precipitation. 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 
state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 
individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 


discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


               PARKS & RECREATION 


            Rally Cap T-Ball Assistant 


 


City of Stoughton 


GRADE: NOT GRADED                                                                                   FLSA: N 


 
REPORTS TO:  Recreation Supervisor 


 


SUMMARY OF POSITION: 
Rally Cap T-Ball Assistants are responsible for setup and take down of equipment, and 
assisting with coaching activities. 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 
position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 


may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 
 


 This is an on field teaching and coaching position. The person must be self-


driven and able to plan practices, drills and other skill building activities. 


 Demonstrate good communication skills. 


 Set up and take down equipment.  


 Must be upbeat and energetic and energetic while interacting with kids. 


 Provide friendly customer service and a welcoming environment to each player. 


 Report incidents and concerns to the supervisor in a timely manner (within 24 


hours). 


 Collect, manage, and return the equipment in good working condition. 


 Attend all necessary program meetings. 


 Other duties as assigned. 


 


QUALIFICATIONS: 


The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications 


 
 Strong leadership skills 


 Ability to stand for up to 2 hours at a time. 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 Knowledge about the sport of baseball/softball. 


 15+ years old 


 
Program Goals 


 Develop a passion of sports in each child. 
 


 Maximize each practice time to improve physical fitness in each child. 
 


 Develop fundamental movement skills.  


 
Environmental Adaptability: 


 
 Ability to work effectively in an outdoor environment, with exposure to outdoor 


conditions including varying temperatures and precipitation. 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 


state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 
individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 
discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


                PARKS & RECREATION 


                Troll Beach Supervisor 


 
 


City of Stoughton 


GRADE: NOT GRADED                                                                                   FLSA: N 


 
REPORTS TO:  Recreation Supervisor 


 


SUMMARY OF POSITION: 
The Troll Beach Supervisor is responsible for all on-site facility, customer and personnel 


activities.  
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 


Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 
position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 


may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 
 


 This is an on-site supervision and working position.  


 Must be self-driven, organized and detail oriented. 


 Must be comfortable providing direction, feedback, and corrective action to both 


staff and customers.  


 Responsible for maintaining high standards in pool safety, cleanliness, customer 


service and accountability at Troll Beach. 


 Must demonstrate good communication skills. 


 Must be upbeat and energetic and understanding when dealing with staff and 


customers.  


 Provide friendly customer service and a welcoming environment to each 


customer. 


 Report incidents and concerns to the Recreation Supervisor in a timely manner 


(within 24 hours). 


 Be responsible for attendance counting and money handling. 


 Responsible for managing the schedule for the life guards. 


 Promote and act as the liaison for bus groups. 


 Coordinate birthday party scheduling and activities. 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 Responsible for facility maintenance during open hours and before, as scheduled. 


 Other duties as assigned. 


 


QUALIFICATIONS: 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 


 
Education/Training/Certifications 


 
 Life guard training is not required but would be beneficial. 


 Organized and able to successfully multitask.  


 The ability to manage and lead a team that could vary in age from 15-22 years of 


age. 


 Desire and ability to carry out essential functions. 


 18+ years old 


 Able to pass background check. 


 
Program Goals 


 Be a clean and safe pool facility. 
 


 Create a great environment for staff and customers. 
 


 Keep the pool economically viable. 


 
Environmental Adaptability: 


 
 Ability to work effectively in an outdoor environment, with exposure to outdoor 


conditions including varying temperatures and precipitation. 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 
state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 
individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 


discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


                PARKS & RECREATION 


     Youth Baseball and Softball Supervisor 


 
 


City of Stoughton 


GRADE: NOT GRADED                                                                                    FLSA: N 


 
REPORTS TO:  Recreation Supervisor 


 


SUMMARY OF POSITION: 
The Youth Softball Program Supervisor is responsible for the on-site supervision of the 


youth softball programs.    
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 


Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 
position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 


may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 
 


 Demonstrate good communication skills. 


 Must arrive 20 minutes prior to game time to unlock equipment boxes and set up 


bases and tees. 


 Provide friendly customer service and a welcoming environment to players, 


coaches and parents. 


 Report incidents and concerns to the supervisor in a timely manner (within 24 


hours). 


 Collect, manage, and return the equipment to proper place in good working 


condition. 


 Provide coaching in the absence of assistant staff or volunteers. 


 Stay for the duration of all games and lock up equipment boxes and storage 


shed after the games; turn off lights if needed. 


 Ensure that games run smoothly by providing rule clarifications and promoting a 


civil, sportsmanlike atmosphere. 


 Attend all necessary program meetings. 


 Supervise coaches and assistants. 


 Other duties as assigned. 


 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


QUALIFICATIONS: 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 


Education/Training/Certifications 
 


 Ability to stand for up to 2 hours at a time. 


 Strong leadership skills 


 Prior experience in a supervisory role. 


 18+ years old 


 
Program Goals 


 Develop a passion of sports in each child. 
 


 Develop fundamental baseball sport skills. 


 


Environmental Adaptability: 
 


 Ability to work effectively in an outdoor environment, with exposure to outdoor 


conditions including varying temperatures and precipitation. 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 
state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 


individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 
discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


 


         PARKS & RECREATION 


          Youth Golf Assistant 
 


City of Stoughton 


GRADE: NOT GRADED                                                                                   FLSA:  N 


 
REPORTS TO:  Recreation Supervisor 


 


SUMMARY OF POSITION: 
Youth Golf Assistants are responsible for setup and take down of equipment, and assisting 
with coaching activities. 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 


position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 
may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 
 


 This is an on field coaching position that is responsible for supervising the 


activity.  


 Demonstrate good communication skills. 


 Set up and take down equipment. 


 Must be upbeat and energetic and energetic while interacting with kids. 


 Provide friendly customer service and a welcoming environment to each player. 


 Report incidents and concerns to the supervisor in a timely manner (within 24 


hours). 


 Collect, manage, and return the equipment in good working condition. 


 Attend all necessary program meetings and trainings. 


 Other duties as assigned. 


 


QUALIFICATIONS: 


The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications 


 
 Strong leadership skills. 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 Ability to stand for up to 2 hours at a time. 


 Knowledge about the sport of golf. 


 18+ years old 


 
Program Goals 


 Develop a passion of sports in each child. 
 


 Maximize each practice time to improve physical fitness in each child. 
 


 Develop fundamental sports skills.  


 
Environmental Adaptability: 


 
 Ability to work effectively in an outdoor environment, with exposure to outdoor 


conditions including varying temperatures and precipitation. 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 
state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 
individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 


discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


                PARKS & RECREATION 


              Youth Programs Assistant  


 


 
 


City of Stoughton 


GRADE: NOT GRADED                                                                                    FLSA: N 


 
REPORTS TO:  Recreation Supervisor 


 


SUMMARY OF POSITION: 
Youth Program Assistants are responsible for assisting with assigned youth programming in 


the summer. Various positions are available and include our Camp programs, youth sport 
programs, etc.  Programs could include physical activity programming and/or non-
competitive sports. 


 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 


Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 
position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 
may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 


 


 This is an on field instruction position. The person must be self driven and able to 


follow assigned lesson plans or follow directions for lead instructor. 


 Demonstrate good communication skills. 


 Must be upbeat and energetic and energetic while interacting with kids. 


 Provide friendly customer service and a welcoming environment to each player. 


 Report incidents and concerns to the supervisor in a timely manner (within 24 


hours). 


 Collect, manage, and return the equipment in good working condition. 


 Attend all necessary program meetings or training.  


 Other duties as assigned. 


 


QUALIFICATIONS: 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 


 
Education/Training/Certifications 
 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 Ability to stand for up to 2 hours at a time. 


 Knowledge about the sport of soccer. 


 15+ Years Old 


 Strong leadership skills. 


 


Program Goals 


 Develop a passion of recreation in each child. 
 


 Maximize each activity time to improve overall wellbeing in each child. 
 


 Develop fundamental social skills in each child. 


 


Environmental Adaptability: 
 


 Ability to work effectively in an outdoor environment, with exposure to outdoor 


conditions including varying temperatures and precipitation. 


 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 
state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 


individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 
discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 








Council Approved ENTER DATE 
Formatted: Highlight


 


           SENIOR CENTER 


      Nutrition Site Manager 


    City of Stoughton 


PAY GRADE: 5                                                                                        FLSA: N 


REPORTS TO: Senior Center Director 


 
SUMMARY OF POSITION: 


The purpose of this full-time position is to organize and plan the serving and delivering of 
meals both in the center and to shut-ins, to help in planning day to day programs especially 
nutrition education and to offer supportive nutritional advice. 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 


position, but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 
may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 


 


 Organizes meals on wheels and congregate meals: readies the coffee counter 


and the kitchen for home delivered meals and completes the daily meal ordering 


form and submits to caterer to order meals. 


 


 To promote teamwork among all staff and volunteers to the benefit of the 


client. 


 


 Arranges and prepares special meals such as outdoor picnics, fish boils, ice cream 


socials, celebration day, snacks, and special events. Orders meals, food supplies, 


materials, and inventories. 


 


 Performs receptionist duties and assists in greeting new participants. 


 


 Performs data entry duties, compiles volunteers hours, compiles monthly meal 


data, and maintains records, reports and/or logs of participants, supplies and 


donations. 


 


 Train food service volunteers; schedules and confirms volunteer kitchen hours 


and program planning for volunteers. 


 


 Schedules meal drivers, finds replacements and aids in recruitment of 


volunteers. 


 


 Coordinates nutritional information to relay to participants. 


 Sanitizes and cleans kitchen and food service areas daily. 


 


 Counts, records and deposits daily nutrition donations; give input into the 


Deleted: SALARY RANGE:                            


Deleted:  


Deleted: billings







Council Approved ENTER DATE 
Formatted: Highlight


budget and kitchen supply needs. 


 Provides information to participants and general public regarding meals, and provides 
nutritional issues, i.e. monthly newsletter article, recipes, conducts surveys and 
evaluations. 


 Plans, schedules, and purchases supplies and food and prepares weekly Thursday 
lunch meal. 


 Resolves public and regulatory agency inquiries. 


 Attends the Dane County Nutritional meetings, annual conferences and 


seminars. 


 Attends staff meetings and training sessions. 


 


 Certification in CPR. 


 


QUALIFICATIONS: 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 


 
Education/Training/Certifications  


 High school diploma or equivalent with two years kitchen or institutional food 


service experience or vocational/technical training in nutrition, or any 
combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, 


skills, and abilities. 


 Experience working with senior citizens preferred. 


 


 A valid Wisconsin motor vehicle operator's license required. 


 


 Knowledge of food service regulations and guidelines. 


 


 Wisconsin Health Department Certification required. 
 


Language Skills and Interpersonal Communication 


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information using in order to 
determine the relationship of the data with reference to established 
criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort 
data, as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and information. 
Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 
 


 Ability to assist in training others, including the ability to act in a lead worker 
capacity. Ability to advise and interpret how to apply policies, procedures and 
standards to specific situations. 
 


 Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as menus, records, 
logs, participation lists, intake forms, volunteer service reports, supply inventory 
lists, sanitation manuals, food buying guides, price lists, catalogs, procedures, 
guidelines and non-routine correspondence. 
 


Formatted: Font:







Council Approved ENTER DATE 
Formatted: Highlight


 Ability to communicate effectively with senior citizens, volunteers, Senior Center 
personnel, vendor representatives and Center visitors. 


 


Mathematical Skills 
 Ability to add, subtract, multiply, divide, calculate decimals and percents, and 


make use of the principles of basic algebra, geometry, and descriptive statistics. 
 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations 
involving the evaluation of information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


 
Physical Requirements 


 Ability to maneuver and steer equipment and machinery requiring simple but 
continuous adjustments, such as food preparation and cooking equipment, dish 
washers and motor vehicle. 
 


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing slightly skilled 
movements such as cutting and mixing. 
 


 Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically 
involving some combination of stooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling, and lifting, 
carrying, pushing and pulling up to 50 pounds. 
 


 Ability to recognize and identify harmonious or contrasting combinations, as well as 
recognize individual characteristics of colors, sounds, tastes, odors and textures 
associated with job-related objects, materials and ingredients. 


 


Environmental Adaptability 


 Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to 
environmental factors is minimal and poses little risk of injury. 
 


 Position may be required to work other than specified hours, i.e. fundraisers, weekend 
events, special meetings and the like. 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 
state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 


individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 
discuss potential accommodations with the City.   
 


 


Deleted: ¶








Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


           SENIOR CENTER 


      Nutrition Site Manager 


    City of Stoughton 


PAY GRADE: 5                                                                                        FLSA: N 


REPORTS TO: Senior Center Director 


 
SUMMARY OF POSITION: 


The purpose of this full-time position is to organize and plan the serving and delivering of 
meals both in the center and to shut-ins, to help in planning day to day programs especially 
nutrition education and to offer supportive nutritional advice. 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 


position, but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 
may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 


 


 Organizes meals on wheels and congregate meals: readies the coffee counter 


and the kitchen for home delivered meals and completes the daily meal ordering 


form and submits to caterer to order meals. 


 


 To promote teamwork among all staff and volunteers to the benefit of the 


client. 


 


 Arranges and prepares special meals such as outdoor picnics, fish boils, ice cream 


socials, celebration day, snacks, and special events. Orders meals, food supplies, 


materials, and inventories. 


 


 Performs receptionist duties and assists in greeting new participants. 


 


 Performs data entry duties, compiles volunteers hours, compiles monthly meal 


data, and maintains records, reports and/or logs of participants, supplies and 


donations. 


 


 Train food service volunteers; schedules and confirms volunteer kitchen hours 


and program planning for volunteers. 


 


 Schedules meal drivers, finds replacements and aids in recruitment of 


volunteers. 


 


 Coordinates nutritional information to relay to participants. 


 Sanitizes and cleans kitchen and food service areas daily. 


 


 Counts, records and deposits daily nutrition donations; give input into the 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


budget and kitchen supply needs. 


 Provides information to participants and general public regarding meals, and provides 
nutritional issues, i.e. monthly newsletter article, recipes, conducts surveys and 
evaluations. 


 Plans, schedules, and purchases supplies and food and prepares weekly Thursday 
lunch meal. 


 Resolves public and regulatory agency inquiries. 


 Attends the Dane County Nutritional meetings, annual conferences and 


seminars. 


 Attends staff meetings and training sessions. 


 


 Certification in CPR. 


 


QUALIFICATIONS: 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 


 
Education/Training/Certifications  


 High school diploma or equivalent with two years kitchen or institutional food 


service experience or vocational/technical training in nutrition, or any 
combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, 


skills, and abilities. 


 Experience working with senior citizens preferred. 


 


 A valid Wisconsin motor vehicle operator's license required. 


 


 Knowledge of food service regulations and guidelines. 


 


 Wisconsin Health Department Certification required. 
 


Language Skills and Interpersonal Communication 


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information using in order to 
determine the relationship of the data with reference to established 
criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort 
data, as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and information. 
Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 
 


 Ability to assist in training others, including the ability to act in a lead worker 
capacity. Ability to advise and interpret how to apply policies, procedures and 
standards to specific situations. 
 


 Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as menus, records, 
logs, participation lists, intake forms, volunteer service reports, supply inventory 
lists, sanitation manuals, food buying guides, price lists, catalogs, procedures, 
guidelines and non-routine correspondence. 
 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 Ability to communicate effectively with senior citizens, volunteers, Senior Center 
personnel, vendor representatives and Center visitors. 


 


Mathematical Skills 
 Ability to add, subtract, multiply, divide, calculate decimals and percents, and 


make use of the principles of basic algebra, geometry, and descriptive statistics. 
 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations 
involving the evaluation of information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


 
Physical Requirements 


 Ability to maneuver and steer equipment and machinery requiring simple but 
continuous adjustments, such as food preparation and cooking equipment, dish 
washers and motor vehicle. 
 


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing slightly skilled 
movements such as cutting and mixing. 
 


 Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically 
involving some combination of stooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling, and lifting, 
carrying, pushing and pulling up to 50 pounds. 
 


 Ability to recognize and identify harmonious or contrasting combinations, as well as 
recognize individual characteristics of colors, sounds, tastes, odors and textures 
associated with job-related objects, materials and ingredients. 


 


Environmental Adaptability 


 Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to 
environmental factors is minimal and poses little risk of injury. 
 


 Position may be required to work other than specified hours, i.e. fundraisers, weekend 
events, special meetings and the like. 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 
state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 


individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 
discuss potential accommodations with the City.   
 


 








Council Approved INSERT DATE 
 


Formatted: Highlight


 


                    SENIOR  CENTER 


                Receptionist/Office Assistant 
 


 


 


City of Stoughton 


PAY GRADE: 2                                                                                           FLSA: N 


 REPORTS TO: Director 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION: 


The purpose of this position is to act as Receptionist for the Stoughton Area Senior Center.  
 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 
position, but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 


may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 
 


 Greets, screens, assists and directs callers and visitors; provides information 
regarding the Senior Center and its programs and activities; takes and relays 
messages; answers questions and refers individuals to appropriate personnel. 


 
 Takes reservations; receives and receipts payments; counts coffee money; records 


craft sales. 
 


 Signs library books in and out. 
 


 Newsletter Editor. 


 


 Monthly meal billing. 


 


 Loan Closet recordings. 
 


 Assigns Case Managers to clients. 
 


 
 Maintains a variety of records; performs data entry.  


 
 Maintains database. 


 


 Schedules riders for shopping and/or meal site. 
 


Deleted: SALARY RANGE:                                           


Deleted: computes 


Formatted: List Paragraph,  No bullets or numbering,
Widow/Orphan control, Allow hanging punctuation, Font
Alignment: Auto


Formatted: List Paragraph,  No bullets or numbering,
Widow/Orphan control, Allow hanging punctuation, Font
Alignment: Auto


Formatted: List Paragraph,  No bullets or numbering,
Widow/Orphan control, Allow hanging punctuation, Font
Alignment: Auto


Formatted: List Paragraph,  No bullets or numbering,
Widow/Orphan control, Allow hanging punctuation, Font
Alignment: Auto


Deleted: <#>Calls Day Care clients.¶


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or numbering


Deleted: via car and bus


Deleted: ¶


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or numbering







Council Approved INSERT DATE 
 


Formatted: Highlight


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential 
part of the purpose of this position and may also be performed by other unit members. 


 
 Sorts and distributes mail; displays magazines and newspaper; helps with large 


mailings. 
 


 Sells crafts and posts sales in ledger. 


 
 Opens/closes Center; unlocks/unlocks doors; turns on/off lights; waters flowers; etc. 


 
 Performs other related functions as assigned or required. 


 


QUALIFICATIONS: 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 


 
Education/Training/Certifications  
 


 High School Diploma or equivalent with 2 years of clerical and customer 
service experience or any combination of education and experience that 


provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.  
 
 


Language Skills and Interpersonal Communication 
 


 Requires the ability to process, calculate, compute, summate, and/or tabulate data 
and/or information. Also requires the ability to perform subsequent action in 
relation to these computational operations. 


 
 Requires the ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-


established policies, procedures and standards. 
 


 Requires the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests 
from others. 
 


 Requires the ability to use a wide variety of reference data and information such as 
reservations, time sheets, craft sales, payments, schedules, and records.  


 
 Requires the ability to communicate effectively with the Senior Center Director and 


all Center personnel, senior citizens, outreach workers, Nutrition Supervisor, van 


driver, supervisors, Adult Day Care clients, visitors and the public. 
 


 
Mathematical Skills 
 


 Ability to perform addition and subtraction, multiplication and division.  
 


 
 


Deleted: gifts 







Council Approved INSERT DATE 
 


Formatted: Highlight


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
 


 Requires the ability to carry out instructions furnished in written, oral or diagram 


form. Involves semi routine work, with some latitude for independent judgement 
regarding choices of action.  
 


 Requires the ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable or verifiable 


criteria. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Position  Functions 


 
 Requires the ability to operate, maneuver, and/or provide simple but continuous 


adjustment on equipment, machinery, and tools such as a computer and other office 
machines, and/or materials used in performing. 
 


 Requires the ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as rapid keyboard use. 


  Requires the ability to exert light physical effort in sedentary to light work, but which 
may involve some lifting, carrying, pushing, and pulling of objects weighing five to 
ten pounds. 


 
  Requires the ability to recognize and identify similarities or differences between 


characteristics of colors, shapes and sounds associated with job-related objects, 
materials and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
 


   Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to 
environmental factors is minimal and poses very limited risk of injury. 
 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 


 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 


state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 
individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 


discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 





